BEFORE THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF
THE PEORIA POLICE PENSION FUND

IN THE MATTER OF THE
DISABILITY APPLICATION OF:

'OFFICER TIMOTHY WIGHT,
APPLICANT,

AND

CITY OF PEORIA,
INTERVENOR.

DECISION AND ORDER

This matter comes before the Board of Trustees of the Peoria Police P't;;_nSion
Fund ("Pengion Board”) upon the disability application of Officer Timethy nght
E("Applicant”). The Pension Board, pursuant to the statutory authority sét f01th in
40 ILCS 5/3-101 e.t_s?q,, of the Illinois Pension Code, renders the 'fo_ll_owﬁin_g de%cis_i(m

concerning Applicarit;‘_s_ claim for line-of-duty disability pension benefits.

A hearing Was held before the Pension Board on November 19, 202@ and
é-;%_Decembel 18, 2020. Apphcant was duly and properly notified of the hearmg and
ﬁ:;'was present. At he'a:m-ng-,' Applicant was represented by Counsel, Attorney ':Stephe_n
;P Kelly. During thlS hearing, the Applicant had the opportunity to submlt
evidence, present Lestlmony, and guestion witnegses regavding this elaim. The Clty

of Peoria (__{Interv:t'enq'r) was duly and properly notified of the hearing an'(l was.



present At hearing, _;ntelvenor was represented by Counsel, Attorney Kennef;h M.
-Snodglass and Attmney Kevin Sheehan. During this heatring, the Intelvenm had
j_;-he opportunity to s_,ubmlt- evidence, present .test1m0ny__, and guestion W1tnéesses
ér'e garding this claim. |

In .rejachi'ng--itsz decision, the Pension Board has carefully considered all of the
testm:lony elicited at the hearing and has reviewed all of the exhibits made a p"?art of
the Administrative Record. The Pension Board has considered all the _s_.ubn%lit-ted_
E-i.(it)cu1nentati'0n and a]l the arguments of both the Applicant and Intervenor, To the
;é_iexten?t that any arguments, findings, or conclusions submitted by Appl_icaéut or
Intervenm are in accordance with the findings, conclusions, and views sjt'ated'
herem, they have been accepted and to the extent the testimony of -witnessz'es. or
éd-oc,*ume.n.tatio'n submitted is not in accord with the findings herein, such -testizérnony

-or documentation is not credited.

A
FINDINGS OF FACT

Based upon -t-h;é- preponderance of the evidence, the Pension Board mak‘(}s--'the

'Eiiflol'lowing- findings of fact



i’relim‘-in@y- ' :Ma‘tter’s.é

1. The 'Pen?sion Board held a hearing on Applicant's line-of-duty d‘isaibiljity
_étpp'lication on N‘0verré_ber 19, 2020, (Tr. 1)!, which was continued and r_eeonVen';éd on
_‘jl)_ecember 18, 2020. (T1 177). |
. 2. Pension Board Exhibits one (1) through twenty-one (21), Joint Exhlblts:
one (1) through four (4), and TW Exhibits 3, 4 & 5 were admitted int'(fj the
;admlnlstratlve record without ebjection on November 19, 2020. (Tr. 14, 15 21 24) -
On December 18, 2020, Joint Exhibits 1-A, 3-A, and 5 were admitted 1nt0 the

;.jad-mmlstratlve- recor‘d without objection. (Tr. 182-183).

3. On or about November 19, 2018, Applicant applied for a line: of duty
;dlsablhty pension. (Bd. Ex. 1). The disability is based upon post- ccmcussmn
%i%syndrome / neurological condition. (Tx. 49). At hearing, Applicant amended the
;;;apphcatlon to seeka llne of duty dlsablhty, and in the alternative, a non-line Of duty
_-_idIS'ablIIty__pensmn. (Tr 50). .

4. Appli’.car;t-_is a re’guiar member of the Peoria Police 'Dep-a-rtment.hc;lding
the rank of Patrol Ofﬁcel He is forty-four 44 years old and has twenty--tw.é_ (22)
;:years of ereditable Seiifﬁ_f_jice'_._- (Bd. Ex. 1 & Tr. 80).

5. Appli‘ca’%l_ﬁ received his probationary appointment to the Peoria %’.oli'c'e':

';De_parj;me_nt on.-Septéjmhe-_r- 17, 1998. (Bd. Ex. 1.

5_5‘ References to testimony flofn the transcript of hearing will be citéd as (Tr, ). References to Exhibits froin the
Administrative Record will be cited as'Bodrd Exhibit (Bd. Ex. _ ), Applicarit Timothy Wight Exhibit (TW. E’x __},
-:_Intervenor City'of Peorid F‘(hlb]ts {(Int. Ex, ___}, or as Jeint Exhibits (Jt. Ex. Y



é:

6. Appli’caﬁt is divorced and has two dependent: children under the é‘-ge of

18. (Tr. 80).

:-Prior Injuries

7. The Applicant testified concerning prior work related injuries. Sﬁlor_-tl'y
:1_5::§_after' being hired he twisted his ankle; he recovered from this injury and Tet;urr’fie_ d to
‘wotk. (Tr. 82).

8. In 2001 he sustained a s_erieus_ injury when he was run over by'a dlunk
dlwer That injury shattered both his acetabulums (hip sockets). It took him
Eig:_a-pproximately two years to recover from that injury. Prior to his fe_cover'_g,'r-, the
Pohce Chief called the Applicant into his office, along with a union -repre__senéative.,
The Chief suggested the Applicant file for a dissbility pension and end his i)elice
;Ecareel The Apphcant told the Chief he wanted to return to works he: eventually did

recover, passed a fit f01 duty test, and returned to full duty in 2003. (Tr. 82- 85)

9. ‘The Apphcant sustained two more injuries, these involved a torn knee
onee around 2013 2014 and again around 2015-2016. He received treatment .
underwent physmal 1ehab1htatmn and returned to full duty following ﬁtness for

“duty exams. {Tr. -85-86).

10. Priox to July 28, 2017, the Applicant did not miss work. for headaches.
or concentration 1ssues and had not been diagnosed with a concussion or post

conCcuSsion s_yndr'ome. (Tr. 86).



Injury Causing Incident — July 28, 2017

11. On July 28, 2017, the Applicant vésponded to assist another ofﬁcer
wlth a criminal SuSpE'éCt that was fleeing. He was chasing a.suspect on foot Whé-n' he

tr-ipped, striking his f;ace- and wrists on a cement driveway. (Tr. 87).

12, Immediately after the fall, the Applicant felt lightheaded. He got up to
_Eil'onti-nue-- the chase but had to pause for a few minutes beside a house 'becauése he
felt lightheaded. He returned to the station to complete a report, but had dlfflculty
;entomng it into the computer and kept putting in the wrong year. After anothel_
ofﬁcer urged him to get checked out, he realized something was wrong and Went to

the emergency room at St. Francis hospital. (Tr. 87-89).

18. At the hospital, the Applicant was diagnosed with a concuss'ionf,__ and
i_-%;ieferr‘ed to a surgeon for his wrist injury. This occurred on July 28, '_201'7';_ The
:?&pplicant had never if.be___en diagnosed with a concussion prior to this fin‘cidén’té. (Tx.
1),

14. At the -f_direction of his employer, the Applicant was sent to the
:;:OC;C;up'zttional branch at St. Fraricis hospital on July 31, 2017. He was 'di'a'gno‘se(i with

post traumatic heada‘iehe_s and was restricted from work. (Tr. 91"-9.8.)

15. The Apphcant was sent by his employer for additional medlcal

._.;;evaluatlon He saw D1 Moody, who referred him to a neurologist named Dr. Pegg

o
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The Applicant was ais_o.‘re_ferred for an MRI and cognitive therapy. Prior to this
injury, he never saw a neurologist or received cognitive therapy. (Tr. 93:95).

16, Ind anufary-ofm2"{)'.18 the employer physician, Dr. Moody, referreﬁ. the
Apphcant to Dr. Jankowska a neurologist at Illinois INT. At this tlme the

-Apphcant had not 1eturned to work and was still having symptoms of headaches,

_._blurr'ed_ vision, and -_co_nc_entration issues. (Tr. 9_'6'97).

17. Dr. Jankowska diagnosed the Applicant with po_st-'concui_s_si'on__

‘syndrome and vertigo. (Tr..97).

18. Dr. Jankowska prescribed medications for the Applicant and -r‘ef;rred
h1m to Dr. Nersesyan, who is a neurologist and a headache specialist. She also
?%ref_erred the Applicant to Dr. Fitch, who treated the Applicanit for issues w11;h his:
eyes not tracking properly. (Tr. 97-101).

19. In June of 2018, the Applicant was released to go back to ka in a
:-.hght duty asmgnment He was assigned to work for Sgt. Paul Deeb, and wmked

various clerical asmgnments which included computer data entry. (Tr. 101- 102)

20. The Ap?licant testified he had difficulty in the light duty posit_i‘%m as
his symptoms _contint_;;ed, The computer screen would make him nauseous, glve him
headaches and cause dly heaves. (Tr. 103). |

21. Dulmg the hearing, Paul Deeb testified concerning his obsefvatmns of

the Applicant while. pelfounmg light duty work. Paul Deeb is a 21- year Veteran of

-;-the Peoria Police Dep’art-me..nt; he is currently assigned as temporary Lleut_e.nant of



the training division. In June of 2018, Deeb was the property crime Sergeant Wlthm
‘the .criminal in‘vestigéxtion division. The Applicant was assigned light. duty Wlthln

-_phat division, and Deeb was his supervisor. (Tr. 62).

22, Paul'Deéb testified he observed and interacted with Applicant nght
_fdulmg the time he- supelwsed him. He observed that after only 10 to 15 mmutes of
-_fwmkmg on the computel the Applicant would look physically ill, and obse1Ved a
gchange of color in his face. Deeb indicated the Applicant would occasmnally send
th ‘an email that did not make sense, requiring a call for clarification. f’Deeb
;%ec_alled_ one occasion where he sent the Applicant home because he 1é‘0ked

%_;éxtremé:ly ill and was getting confused. (Tr. 63-65).

| 923.  Paul Deeb testified that he supervised the Applicant from about: June
;?2018 till abgut January 25, 2019, and that the Applicant had these problems
;thl ‘oughout that time. Deeb further testified that he knew the Applicant prlor 130 the
g;}mJury in this case. Deeb and the Applicant had been on the hostage negotlatlng
.;-éfeam prior to this ln]‘lJ_IY; Deeb testified the Applicant did not exhibit any qf the
.::_Ecurr'e'nt probleins at that time, (Tr. 65:66). .:

24, On Nov‘éemhe_r 5, 2018, the Applicant ended his treatment w1th Dr.
_f:;;Jankowska as sh‘e p_iaced him at maximum medical improvement. The. Appiicant
Was not veturned to full police duty, he was released with. restrictions. (Tx. 104)

25. On No‘vém’ber' 14, 2018, the Applicant was seen again by Dr. l\iioody
::_-éfwho placed him at n-iaximtuh medical improvement, but did not return him t;o full

:??*du“ty as a police officer. (Tr. 104-105).



26. The Apphcant s light duty assignment at the police department ended
m January of 2019. ’I‘h1s is because the collective bargammg agreement only allows

120 days of light _du-tyi: (Tr: 105).

27. The Apphcant had approximately 900 hours of sick time accrued and
Ziequested to use that time; however, the City refused his reguest. As a 1esult he
'_:esed other acerued beneﬁt time until the City terminated his employment on March
518 2019. The City has not offered him any dther job in arny other capacity. (T1 1056-

f:;L.OG_)-.

28. The Applicant underwent examinations by the Pension B'Oar..d-dbé_tors-
E_Clty doctors and his own doctors. Diuring these exemmatmns Dr. Noggle gave the
;;Apphcapt a written test. That test caused the Applicant to experience dry heavmg_
_%?and headaches; he took several breaks, but was able to finish it on the second day.

(Tr. 107-108).

29. The Apphcant has not been released to full duty by Drs. J ankowska

"Moody, Pegg, ox Nersesyan (Tr. 108-109).

30. The Apphcant still has difficulty with multi-tasking; he gets frustrated
;and confuséd. He has short term memory loss and headaches; his vision ploblems
-;._have improved after _f;he- recelved special glasses, but they: still persist later 1{1‘1 the

day. (Tr. 110-118).



Medical Evaluations

31. The App.iica-nt received numerous medical evaluations, to i-n_clud:é two
neumpsychologlcal evaluatlons, two workers' compensation indepeéndent medlcal
_;exa.mS, three Pensmn Board independent medical exams, and an addltlonal

fiapp]ic_:ant requested n_fredica-l exam.

;.-;.InterVEnor-’ s Neuropsychology Evaluation Report

;?:;%Chad Noggle, Ph.D. (Bd. Ex. 9)

32,  Dr. Chad Noggle is a clinical neuropsychologist, board certified by the:
Ameucan Board of Professional Psychology. He evaluated the Appli'calét on
2504/20!2018 and 04/23/2018, to assess for presence, extent, and natui'e_ of
;gneuropsychologlcal impairment as part of a requested Independent Médlcal
;E_Exammatlon. Dr. Noggle administered a hattery of tests and prepared a w%‘-l_tte_n
:;ff;report-of his evaluation. (Bd. Ex. 9, p.1051). Dr. Noggle’s report lists the ans‘wger-s to
sie_lev;en different qUe_étions posed . to him by the Intervenor, however, it does not.

__'.in'C-lude the list of Quefstions that were posed. (Bd. Bx. 9, §.1057-1058).

33. Dr. No‘gig_le. opined the Applicant was not disabled; and his coné?ii-tiortﬂ

was not work-related'; stating:

“In. his case, these difficulties are seen as related to psychiatric :
issues. However, from Whele these psy(,hlatuc issues have
arisen is unknown. This IS NOT related to work- related factors
or the -event of discussion, Namely, this is not a PTSD :
presentation. There are features consisterit with an atyplcal
Major Dep1eSS1on and even features of Generalized Anx1ety



However, given. the reported history, one must consider this as
an Adjustment Reaction with primary somatic symptoms.” :

(Bd. Ex. 9 p. 1057).

84, D 'No_g:'gle disagreed with the Applicants treating _p‘hysici'ans_:é and

opined the Applica-nt’-é' problem was psychological, he stated:

“I believe the root cause of Mr. Wight's issues is that of a .
psychological nature. This is the only thing that fits his history -
and presentation. Consequently, vision therapy, mneuro-
optometric therapy, or behavioral optometxy consultation: is- not

warranted in my professional opinion.”
(Bd. Ex.9, p. 1057).

35.  Dr. Noggle further opined that the Applicant's condition is not ré;lfated
:32";‘1:_0 his on-duty injury in 2017; but that the injury was the catalyst by 'Whid;h_ the

“issues emerged:

“Consultation with a psychiatrist and ongoing therapy for
psychiatric issues are recommended. However, I do not believe :
his psychological issues stem from the fall in 2017, rather, this"
event was a catalyst by which underlying psychologlcal issues
emerged.” _ :
(Bd. Ex. 9, p. 1058),

Applicant’s Neuronsvicholo‘gy Evaluation Report

Patricia J. Andrise, ﬁh.D. (Bd. Ex. 10)

36. Dr. Patnma J. Andrise is a licensed clinical psychologist who exammed
:gg_the Applicant on 00/07/ 18, 05/08/18 and 07/10/18. The purpose of her evaluatlon

_;':-was to determine thg; extent, if any, that the patient's cognitive status has c_hgm_g_e_d

10
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due to neurological ill-nes_s- or injury and to compare. the findings to those of Dr.
Noggle. She condmté‘d a battery of tests on the Applicant and rendered a Wéit.ten

teport. (Bd. Ex. 10).
37. Dr. AndifiSe;_ reported the Applicant’s condition had improved, but he

‘still suffered from cognitive impairment due to his injury. (Bd. Ex. 10, _p.1069_).

38. Dr. Andrise discounted the testing and report by Dr. Noggle She.
fg_;iindicat_ed the failure ‘to inform the patient in advance as to the long length of the
;:ftest_;i_i_ig,_ failure to mark tests with the patients names, and failure to perfojrm a
535';fe_edback appointment would make his test data invalid and not interpretableﬁ;; (Bd.
‘Ex. 10, p.1066.

39. Dr. Andrise diagnoseéd the Applicant with post concussive s_yndé;ome;-

:'?_;;'(TW Ex. 1, p:3887), and indicated he did not appear to be malingering:

“Mr. Wight's current profile is not suggestive of a malingerer
despite his "overclaiming" of symptoms noted on psychological |
tests. Mr. Wight reports improvement in functioning since the -
injury. He also reports significant improvement since treatment
changes implemented by Dr. Nersesyan. Mr. Wight has returned :
to work, as ordered, despite his symptoms. Mr. 'Wight's :
physician agreé¢ that he is injured and continue to:
medieate/prescribed other treatments such as speech therapy
and vestibular therapy. Importantly, the patient's performance :
on testing suggest that he has returned to his baseline level of :
functioning. These are just a few exampleés disproving that Mr. |
Wight is attempting consciously fake or malinger for secondary :
gain. Mahngerers do not have such: characteristics.” :
(Bd. Ex. 10, p.1070).

11



Intervenor's Workers” Compensation Independent Medical Evaluation Report

Dr. Elizabeth S. Kessler, M.D. (Bd. Ex. 12)

40.  Dr. Ke_s_i’sle.r is a physician and board-certified neurologist w1th a
subspecialty in behaﬂ}i_ol*al neurology. (TW. Ex. 4, p.4083-4086). She ._e‘xam-in_eid the.

Applicant on 10/11/ 18 for an independent medical evaluation. (Bd. Ex. 12, p. 1096).

41. Dr. Kessler disputed the treating physicians diagnosis of ConC..ué_Sibn,
;';.fstating: “It is unclear in the medical records and given Mr. Wight's history to Eme if

he sustained any concussion in the 7/28/17 accident.” (Bd. Ex. 12, p.1111).

42. Dr. Kessler further disputed the necessity of treatment thaié was
fprovid_e_d by the Ap_plicanfs treating physicians:

“Treatment related to the closed head injury, possible concussion
and possible cervical, muscle strain sustained in the accident :
would include the emergency department visit, two subsequent
occupational medicine visits and the CT brain scan. (I am .
providing no opihions regarding any injury sustained by Mr. :
Wight to his right- wrist in the 07/28/17 accident.) For any
injuries sustained in the accident Mr: Wight did not require any
of the mneurology evaluations including by Dr. Pegg, Dr. .
Jankowska or Dr. Nersesyan. He required no additional imaging |
studies :or multiple medications for any ‘injuries that he
-sustame_:d While mneuropsychological testing demonstrated-no |
memory or cognitivé impairments correlating with Mr. Wight's
repmt’ed symptoms, he sustained no injury in the accident
requiring the neulopsycholog‘lcal evaluations. Mr. Wight also.-
sustained no visual system injury and required no optometric
evaluation or treatment. In addition, he did not sustain a
vestibular injury and requires no vestibular treatment. As Mr.
Wight had no memory or cognitive impairment. related to the
accident; he has required no speech cognitive therapy related to
the accident. Although Mr. Wight continues to report symptoms
that he states affect his ability to function, none of the
symptoms that he reports after a couple of weeks after the

12



accident, would relate to any injuries that he sustained and he
requires no additional evaliations or treatment due to the 7
/28/17 accident. The symptoms that he reports at this time do °
not indicate any condition that could account for his symptoms
aside ﬁom underlying psychological issues unrelated to the -
accident. Any psychotherapy that would be ‘sought by Mr, Wight
would not. be necessitated by any injures that he sustained in :
the accident.” ' :
(Bd. Ex. 12, p,111_3).

?Annlic'ant-’s Workers' Compensation Independent Medical Evaluation Report

Dr. Gene 0. Neri, M.D. (Bd. Ex. 11)

48,  Dr. Neri is a physician, board certified in neurology and 'psyc_'hiatry.
(TW Ex. 2, p.3932). He examined the Applicant on 05/07/2018 for an _ind_eip‘e:é.’dent
f;inedicaI evaluation. (Bd. Ex. 11, p.1079). |

44. Dr. Neri diagnosed the Applicant as having “closed-head 1nJu1y
__éy-n‘dr‘ome'-; 'ﬂexionjexﬁension injury, cervical spine; sleep disturbance secondairy' to
-}closed head Injury - syndrome and flexion/extension injury, cervical Sép_ine.;
-'convergence msufﬁméncy secondary to closed-head injury syndrome. (Bd. Ex 11,
_-_p .1082). Dr. Nexi dlsputed Dr. Noggle's opinion. He explained his dlssent and
opined the App‘ht:apt was positive for a concussion/traumatic brain 1:}]111'37-,
indicating the App‘_liéant.’s fall was the cause. (Id.). With respect to Dr. N'oiggle’-s-

report he stated:
“Finally; with regard to the neurepsychological evaluation that
you have forwarded to mé done by Dr. Chad Noggle, Ph.D., I

wholé-heartedly disagree with Dr. Noggle's assessment. It
should be understood ‘that in an evaluation of the patient with :
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regard to his neurological status, a neurclogist should be the
head of the team, and a neuropsychological evaluation is but a
test to be taken into account in the process of evaluation which
also may include EEG, EMG, MRI, CT or other neurological '
tests. It 1s not in and of itself a test purely diagnostic in nature,
nor is the doctor giving the lest able to diagnose the condition :
without a neurologist. It would appear that there are several |
discrepancies in this testing, certainly as compared to my -
evaluation and those of 2 other neurclogists, Dr. Pegg and Dr.
Jankowska, all of whom agreed that the patient had a cerebral -
concussion. The only dissenting vote is by Dr. Noggle, a non-
practitioner of neureclogy. He hasically states that the accident :
in question had "nothing to do" with the patient's state of 1l- -
being currently when everyone élse who has evaluated the
patient, including the above-mentioned doctors as well as |
experts in neuro-optometry, speech therapy, audiology and
neur ology, all practitioners of neurology, have.felt differently. :

45.  Dr. Neri was provided additional reports from other doctors and .'—;isked
f01 comment. He addressed the report of Dr. Kessler as inaccurabe and poinﬁs_ out:

:;;?:that she disagrees with all of the treating physicians®

“You have sent me further records from Dr. Jankewska, The .
Headache Clinie, Occupational Health, and a "Section 12 Exam"
by Dr. Elizabeth Kessler, With regard to the follow-up exams of |
Dr. Jankowska et al., I find no significant change in any of my
opinions; |

However, with regard to the voluminous, though inaccurate
letter by Dr. Kessler, this. 18-page rant goes through virtually |
every single patient complaint and takes them all out of context, |
explammg how they could not be related to the patient's injury .
in any way. From start to finish, anyone who said differently,
including the Emergency Room doctor at Saint Francis Hospital :
who diagnosed concussion, Dr. Pegg, a neurologist who
diagnoséd concussion, D¥. Moody, the patient's primary care :
who -d'iélgn'o'SGd concussion, Dr. Jankowska, a "c_oncﬁ_s_s_ion
netrologist’ who diagnosed concussion, Amanda Chapman, a
speech - -and language specialist who also diagnosed f
postconcusswe changes, and Dr. Andrise; whose report was
consmtent with cerebral concussion, was, -according to D1

14



Kessler, mlsmformed Dr. Kessler feels all of us are not only
wrong but incompetent. I will not go through each and every one
of her clalms that I find offensive and wrong: Rather I would
suggest it would be more fruitful to answer her complaints
regarding my findings, though it is amazing how she has
countered every treating medical practitioner on the plaintiff's
side with disdain and disrespect. "

With -regar@ to my evaluation, she begins on page 13 of ‘Ther
report. She recounts my history and indicates on many occasions
that L. am wrong. '

I have been in neurological practice for 40 years and although I -
have done and continue to do medical legal work, both for
plaintiffiand defense periodically, I have a full-time neumloglcal
practice. I have seen thousands of concussions over the last 40
years and treated them. Many of these patients had additional
problems such as flexion-extension injury to the. cervical spine
occurring with the same injury, and sleep disturbance which, :
yes, does occur with concussions with quite a bit of regularity.

On the other hand, Dr. Kessler, to my knowledge, spends a huge
amount of time om defense reports such as these time-
consuming, pains-taking reports and has a conyenient position
at the James A. Lovell Cénter, a VA system hospital. Having
worked at Hines VA Hospital for several years, I can honestly :
say that I never saw one fresh concussion the whole time. The
VA system is not a place where you see concussions, as they
occur on. an acute basis and people in VAs ave primarily
chronically ill patients. Thus, there is certainly some question. -
as to the number of concussions Dr. Kessler has seen and/or ;
treated. :

From her discussions in the records. it would appear to me that:
she has a rather poor understanding of what a concussion is and .
the surroundmg conditions that might be associated with it :
which also need to be treated, such as ﬂox1on éxtension mJury to.
the ce1v1cal spine and sleep disorder secondaly to concussion,”
(Bd. Ex. 11, p.1088)

15



46. Dr. Neri :-findi.c‘ated the additional reports do not change .his‘opinitmi. He
reported the Applicanit “canhot return to full duty as a police officer either m‘e_rftally

or physically at this time.” (Bd. Ex. 11, p.10-89-1090).

f-j?en’sion Board’s Indeﬁeﬁdent Medical Evaluation Reports

47. The Pension Board contracted with INSPE Associates LTD. To select
__thlee physicians to perform medical examinations.on the Applicant. (Bd. Ex. 16)
The physicians selected were: Leslie A. Masood, M.D. (Bd. Ex. 17 Iia?n S.

f_?Katznelson, M.D. (Bd. Ex. 18); and David M. Anderson, M.D. (Bd. Ex. 19).

;';E;'Les]ie A. Masood, M.D. (Bd. Ex. 17).,
48. Dr. Masood is a physician certified by the American Boaf'd' of
;Psychmtry and Neulology and the American Board of Independent Medlcal

Examiners. She exammed the Applicant on 05/21/19 and rendered a written 1ep0rt

(Bd. Ex. 17, p.3754- 3768)

49, Dr. Masood opined that the Applicant is not disabled, but quahﬁed
that statement: “Ofﬁcel Wight' cannot be deemed “"disabled" at this tlme It is
important to note, - 'h’QWeVer that the. relationship between 1mpa1rment and
‘disability is complex.” (Bd. Ex. 17, p.3755).

50. Dr. Masood did not answer the Pension Board’s quéstion’s di’rec?tly as

‘they wete posed, but instead gave a series of conclusions. Among those conclusions

16



she indicated: Ofﬁcel Wight should be capable of performing in a light .duty
capacity” and “Celtamly more treatment can be offered the claimant that has not
been attemprted.” (Bd Ex. 17, p.3755-3756). Her report does not answer the d1rect
questlon of whethel 01 not. the Applicant can perform full and unrestricted pohce

_'duties. (Bd. Ex. 17, -p.3755-3756).

Ian S. Katanelson, M.D. (Bd. Ex. 18).

51. Dr. Katznelson is a physician licensed in Ilinois, and board certiﬁ*éd by
;the American Board of Psychiatry and Neurology with added quahﬁcatlon in
;Chmcal Neurophysiology. (Bd. Ex. 18, p. 3781). He examined the Apphcant on

05/ 30/19 and rendered a written report.. 1d.).

52. Dr. Katznelson opined that the Applicant was disabled g'from
:iéiunres_.tri_c-ted police duties. He also commented on the p_ossibﬂ-i-ty-_that the :di's_fizbility
was caused by emotional and psychological factors other than the physical il_zlju-ry,

-:'.__i_nd'icating' that it wo@ld still be disabling. Dr. Katznelson stated:

“My- opmmn is that Officer Wight is disabled from performing
unrestricted police duties. I believe that he suffered a
concussion, resultant post- coricussive syndrome and ceivical :
strain as a result of his fall on 7/27/17. He also injured his- vight |
wrist, but- I would defer ecomments regarding that to an-
orthopedist. Concussions and resultant post-concussive
syndlomes are usually self-limitéd problems that resolve over
weeks or months and steadily improve with time. Since he i1s’
nearly 2 years postinjury I would expect that his post-
‘concussive complaints would have nearly resolved by now, and I:
cannot fully explain why he continues to have symptoms at the
current level, although he has improved. His MOCA score of 25
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was not normal, and indicated te me some level of cognitive
dysfunction. I think it is possible that there are emotional and :
psychological factors present as alluded fo by his
neuropsychology assessments. Nevertheless, whatever the cause °
of his symptoms, they are problematic, interfere with full
cognitive functioning, and are net compatible with unrestricted
police work. He has ongoing. headaches, visual problems and |
difficulty with comcentration at times. Even a minor lapse in :
attention or concentration at a critical moment, for example,
during pursuit, using his firearm, vescue, or protection could
endanger himself or others.
(Bd. Ex. 18, p.3772- 3773).

53. Dr. Katznelson opined that the Applicant's disability -was :di]ée'ctly

;ir'ela__t-ed to his work related injury in July of 2017, he stated:

“My op1n1on is that Officer Wight's: concussion, cervical strain
and ‘post-concussive syndrome resulted directly from the fall he
sustained in July 2017. He had symptoms following the fall of .
neck pain, headaches, d1fflcu1ty with concentration and the
records clearly note that in ER he felt somewhat "dazed" and he |
had dlfﬁculty thinking following the fall. At nearly 2 years
pOStIllJllly, he has continued to note symptoms that I would
have expected to nearly have resolved by this point, and Tcannot
fully explain why continues to have them at this level. However, |
the fact that his symptoms: have improved all the while, would °
at least follow the trajectory of a post-traumatie injury. As noted
above and as indicated in his neuropsychological testing, there
may be some emotional or psychological factors playing a role.”
(Bd. Ex. 18, p.3773-3774). |
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David M. Anderson, M.D. (Bd. Ex. 19)

54, Dr. And';rs*,on is a physician, board certified by the American Bosérd' of
Olthopaedm Surgery, with a subspecialty in Orthopaedic Sports Medicine. (Bd Ex.
19 p.3796). He exammed the Applicant on 06/17/19 for the purpose of an.
:.mdependent medical evaluatlon in regard to a line-of-duty disability pension f01 his

_-ri_gh-t; wrist. (Bd, Ex. 19, p.3785), and rendered a written report. (Id.).

55.  Dr. Anderson indicated the Applicant was not disabled, but Qu'ai_liﬁed
:f:t'ha-t statemert to indicate that it applied to the injury of the right wrist only He

5-5':::mad'e notation of this on the physician’s certificate (Bd. Ex. 19, 3784).

56. Dr. Anderson also made it clear within his report that his o_piniOiél was
limited to the Applicant’s right wrist. He indicated there is no disability with
:-;:i"espect to the wrist as the Applicant has recover following surgery*

“Officer Wight's current diagnosis pertaining to the right wrist -
is status post right wrigt arthroscopy with debridement. Officer :
Wight is doing very well with his right wrist and does not have
any agmﬁcant physmal limitations, although he occasionally
experiences 'mild soreness and popping. He is able to perform.
full and unrestricted police duties with the right wrist.” :

“Officer Wight does not have a disability specific to the right
wrist as a result of the 07/28/2017 work injury. The 07/28/2017
work incident was the direct cause of his right wrist injury,
however. Officer Wight has doxie well following surgery and does |
nof have any significant limitation with the right wrist.” :
(Bd. Ex: 19, p.3789).
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_.__}iip_plican{i’s Indep endént Medical Evaluation Report

David J. Fletcher, M.D. (TW. Ex. 2).
57.  Dr. Fletcher is a physician, board certified in both Occupationa'i_ and
Z-_fpleventlve Medlcme ('I‘w Ex. 2, p.4148). He examined the Applicant on 10/19/20

;:and rendered a written report. (Id.).

58. Dr. Fletcher opined the Applicant is disabled for full u-n_l"es_tzf_‘icted

pohce duties and stated:

“Due. to the nature of his complaints, he would not be able to .
return to full duty work as a police officer: He could ‘work in an |
environment with certain limitations and ample opportunity for
breaks. He should not work above on heights and not climb |
ladders. He is not disabled from all gainful employment. While
he is able to drive a personal vehicle, I would not have him drive: .
a commercial vehicle.” "
(Tw. Ex. .2_, p.4156).

59.  Dr. Fletcher further opined: “I feel there isa direct causal relatlonshlp

between his eurrent medlcal conditions and the incident at work in July 2017, # (Id ).

E%-_Apnlicant's Work anci‘ Pay Status

60. Applica%dt has mot returned to full and unrestricted duties sinée the

injury on July 28, 2.0;1_17'. (Tr. 106).
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61. Apphcant has received benefits under the Public Employees Dlsablhty

Act (PEDA). (Tr. 146‘)

62. Apphcanf has filed an application for workers™ compensation beﬁeﬁts
gm connection to the July 28, 2017 injury. At the time of hearing on this matter
'iApphcantS workers’ compensation case remamed pending. The Apphcant 15 hot-
écurlenﬂy and has not previously received temporary total disability {(TDD) beneﬁts

:i-;jd_ue--to this injury. (Tx 149).

63. The Peoria Police Department has no light. duty positions -ava_i:l-_a'bile for

‘the Applicant. (Tr. 145-146).

E:Pensi{)n._.B'oard’_s Final Conclusions of Fact.

64. Applicant is how disabled from full and unrestricted duties as a '__E_)olic,e
ofﬁcez .

65. The Applicant’s disability is due to a closed head injury received when
.ié'_S_tI'-i']_SiIl_‘-'g- his head on a concrete driveway. The Applicant’":injury to his right wé"ist_i's
'-.fn'ot_ a disabling in_ju'ry;. .

66. App’licaﬁ_-_t’-s_ disability resulted from an accident or injury ihcuri'e'dz in or
5-:;-resul1':"1ng fiom the é-e-r_for'ma:nce of an act of duty, specifically the pur‘s‘uit‘i? of a
Ecr_imin_al suspect on July 28, 2017.

67. If the Ai)p‘l-icant had a preexisting medical condition prior to July 28,

;?:-2017:, it was not d-is‘aﬁlin_g- prior to that date.
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68. If Appliciant’?s current disabling condition is related to a preexiisting
condition, then the Aj‘;m.pl‘ic_ant?_sf injury on July 28, 2017 aggravated or aceeleif'ated
the preexisting condif_tion to such a degree that the Applicant 1s now iiisabl'_jéd to

perform full and unrestricted police duties.

B.
STATUTE TO BE CONSTRUED

The fbllowin-g_- Statutory provisions have application in this case.

40 TLCS §5/3-114.1: Disability Pension - Line of Duty

Tf a police officer as the result of sickness, aceident or injury
incurred in or resulting from the performance of an act of duty, is’
found to be physically or mentally disabled. for service in the police |
department, so as to render necessary his or her ‘suspension or
retirement from the police service, the police officer shall be entitled to
a disability retirement pension equal to the greatest of (1) 656% of the '
salary attached to the rank on the police force held by the officer at the
date of suspension or retirement, (2) the retirement pension that the |
police officer would be eligible to receive if he or she retired (but not fg
including any automatic annual increase in.that retirement pension), :
or (3) the pension provided under subsection (d), if applicable. :

A police officer shall be considered “on duty” while on any:
assignment approved by the: chief of the police department of the.
municipality he or she serves, whether the assignment is within or
outside the municipality.

40 I_-iLC-S‘_S/ 3-114.2 Disability pension — Not on duty

Disability pension — Not on duty. A police officer who becomes:
disabled as a result of'any cause other than the performance of an act:
of duty, and who is found to be physically or mentally disabled so as to
render necessary his or her suspension or retirement from police:
service in the police department, shall be entitled to a disability:
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pension of .50._%;-of the salary attached to the officer’s rank on the police
force at the date of suspension of duty or retirement.

40 ILCS 5/5°113 Act of Duty

§56/6-113. “Act of Duty” Any act of police duty inherently special risk,
not ordinarily ‘assumed by a citizen in the ordinary walks of life,
imposed on a’policeman by the statutes of this State or by the :
ordinances or policé regulations of the city in which this Article is in :
effect or by 4 special assigninent; or any act of heroism performed in
the city having for its direct purpose the saving of the life or property :
of & person othel than the policeman. :

C.
ANALYSIS

_::;Legal Standards to.Be Used.

The purpose of laws for police officers’ pensions is remedial in na.tuu;, and
'fsuch statutes should be liberally construed in favor of the police officer fo be
Eﬁébeneﬁted Peiforv. Boam’ of Trustees, 57 111. App. 3d 102, 106 (1st Dist. 1978) Due
t;o their personal _kn_:owl_edg_e of the peculiar physical and emotional demaqu of
bemg a police ofﬁc_er,_;:-_t'he- members of a police pension board aré in the best p_ﬁ%itio_n
to determirie whethe':;r an Applica'nt is fit for duty or qualified for members]:iip or
;beneflts Sanders v. _Boazd of Trustees, 112 111. App. 3d 1087, 1091 (4th Dist. 1988)
The ‘courts do not substltute their judgment for that of the pension board m Such
;;i;-mattersi Peterson V Board of Trustees, 5 111.App.3d 180, 184 (Ist. Dist. 19'_??1)_.
E_;Mb're'OVer-,- "because the weig'-'ht of the evidence and the -credibility of the: w’i_tzé.e_sses

%are within the provilif;ce'-of the [agency], there need only be some competent 'eviiience
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in the record t_o..s_upp_ért_ its findings." Iwanski'v. Streamwood Police Pension Board,

232 Tl App.3d 180, 184 (1st Dist. 1992).

_-;E'le'me'nts Necessar, fora Lineof-Duty Digability Claim.

Applicant- h'as-i the burden of proving he is disabled, -and the disai)il-ity'
_-éoccuned in the line of duty. Wall v. Schaumburg Police Pension Board, 178 1.
;App 3d 438, 443 (st Dist. 1988). The elenments a police officer must prove in order
.;to obtain a duty related disability under 40 ILCS §5/3-114.1 are: |
; 1) He or she is a police officer;

2) An accident, injury or sickness was incurred;
_3) From the performance of an act of duty;
4) The officer is fOund to be physically or mentally disabled;

5) The disability renders necessary his or her suspension or retirement. from
the police selv1ce -

Officer

Evidence in t’h__é' record demonstrates Applicant was a Peoria Police _Ofﬁ';ci:e-r’ at
‘the time of .h-is;_i'njury?j:and at the time he applied for a pension. Applicant’s "s_ta't;u-s as

1 police officer is undiSpu-te.d- and the first element is satisfied.
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The Appl:icant'?"sufféred an injury to his head which he claims causeft'i his
disability in this case That injury occurred while he was in active pursult of a
criminal suspect. The Intervenor has not challenged the fact that the ac01dent
iélioccur-r.ed, or that it w?s from the performance of an act of duty. The challenge_.?nade.
m this case is whetlier or not the injury actually caused a disability. The facts
;iaresented to the Pension Board indicate that the Apphcant was chasing a crﬁunal
fizsuspect when he fell, striking his face on a cememnt driveway. He went tb the
;_;hosp'ital sho'rtly'aftejryvards for treatment. The Pension Board finds that an.-acé_ldent.

“or injury occurred, satisfying the sécond element.

'ZiAct of Duty

The third ele.rrient requires the injury come from an “act of duty”. The-;. term
“act of duty” for purposes of Article 3 of the Pension Code is construed in accmdance
?';EW1th the definition c0ntamed in Article 5 of the Pension Code. Robbins v. Boazd of
Trustees of the C’azﬁond’a]e-P@]fce- Pension Fund, 177 T11.2d. 5338 (1997). Art;cle‘- 5

defines an act of dut}f; as’

“any act of police duty inherently involving special risk,
not ordinarily assumed by a citizen in the ordinary walks
of life, imposed on a policeman by the statutes of this.
State or'by the ordinances or police regulations of the city
in which this Article is in effect or by a special
assignment; or any act of heroism performed in the city
having for its direct purpose the saving of the life or
property of a person other than the policeman.”
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(40 ILCS §5/5-113).

_In‘ this. case, Applic'ari't was chasing a criminal suspect, which constitutes an éct-.-'of
pohce duty mherently involving special risk. This is a task not ordinarily assumed
by citizens in the 01d1na1y walks of life, and it was a task imposed on the Apphcant

by the statutes of the- State of Illinois, specifically, 725 ILCS 5/107-16, which, states

It 1s the duty of every sheriff, coroner, and every marshal,
policeman, or other officer of an incerporated city, town, or
village, having the powe1 of a sheriff, when a criminal offense
or breach of the peace is committed or attempted in his or her
presence, forthwith to apprehend the offender and bring him
or her before a judge, to be dealt with according to law; to
suppress all riots and unlawful assemblies, and to keep the
peace, and without delay to serve and execute all warrants
and other process to him or her lawfully directed.

(725 ILCS 5/107-16).

The Perision Board finds the Applicant was performing an “act of duty” at the time
:535113 fell, striking his h_feadiface on the cement driveway, such that element threie._ has

f-;_been met.

D1sah1].11,3,1

The only iss’ué‘é remaining are whether or not the injury sustained by the
-'Apphcant on July 28 2017, caused him to be disabled and required his suspensmn
or retirement from __p___oh'ce. service. This is the contested matter in this case, and it
.fé_cOr_ne_s’ with some c'o_ﬁ:ﬂic_ting opinions from a number of Doctors. First, it is E:note_d

?th_at the App‘li‘cant Wf'a's treated at the St. Francis emergency room by Dr. Thieodor-

26



'Schmidt,_ who di_-agnoé_ed a eoncussion on date he fell. (Bd. Ex. 3, p.511). Thereja-fter,
:i’le: 8AW IUMErcus tréating physicians, to include Drs. Moody, Pegg, Jartko.x%ska,
__:?&ndri-se, who all gé_ne_rally agree the Applicant suffered an injury 1'equi-i1-in'g.
_ﬂtre'atm'ent. _ | :
Conflict arose éwhe'n City e’xam‘ine_rs dis’c-la_i_m’ed' the Applicant even had a
?:'concussion in the ﬁlst place, and further claimed his freatment was: unneceé’sary-
(Bd Ex. 9, p.1057). Dr. Noggle claimed the Applicants problems were psychologlcal
ﬂ?but also claims that he believes the Applicant’s fall in 2017 was the catalyst by
Wh1ch the underlying psychological issues emerged. (pre-existing medical i 1ssues w111
be addressed infra). Dr. Andrise objected to Dr. Noggle’s testing plactlces and
i{indicat_ed" his test was invalid, Dr. Kessler, another 'Clty'exammer,- f_o.und faul.té: with

:-;virtu'a-lly all other doctors, and Dx. Neri had a terse response for Dr. Kessler:

Among the examining doctors hired by the parties, the Pension Board E-_g-ive_s
fiéthe greatest weight to Dr. Neri. Hig 40 years of neurological practice and ﬁr'séhand'
;_:f;expe'rience- with ac-tf?_m-l. concussion patients provide important experience. His

féjffind_ing.s are also consi:iste_nt with the multitude of treating physicians.

With respect to the Pension Board’s IME’s, the Pension Board -g’ive:f_s the.
i_gl'eatestf\veight toDr Katznelson. His report (Bd. Ex. 18) is direct and to the pomt
If:He. focused. directly (;n the questions posed by the Board and gave an e'xp_lar'-_iat-_ion
5Ithat demonstrated a knowledge of both the job requirements and the physwal or
_:':;_menta-l capacity nee@ed to petform those specific requirements. He mdlcated the

.f_;_Ap.plican._t_ is -_dis_ab-led}i-fo_r full and unrestricted duty because “Kven a minor la_pse in
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attention or concentré-tion at a critical moment, for example, during pursuit, usmg
h1s firearm, rescue, :orf;.-prot'ecticm could endanger himself or others.” (Id. at 3773)
The other two Pensmn Board IME’s receive lesser weight. Dr. Anderson IS an
01th0ped1c that only addressed. the injury to the Applicant’s right wnst Dr
Andelson clearly noted that his opinion only related to the right wrist injury, Wthh
;Nas not the issue in dlspute Dr. Masoon did not answer the guestions posed in a
;.:d-i-rect manner. She indicated that “Officer Wight should be capable of perfmmmg
f_1n a light. duty capacity” (Bd. Ex. 17, p. 3755) however, that is not the issue, L1ght
;duty is. not available, the disability determiriation hinges on whether or not the
;_ii_x_f&pplican_t can perform full an-d.uinrestrmted police duties, and she did not, alé_sw__er-

;;_i:his*question.

5:5';Pre -pxisting Medical Conditions

There is no requuement that the duty-related incidenit be the orlgmatl“ng or
i;pnmary cause of the i 1n]ury, although a sufficient nexus between the injury and the
'_;pelfmmance of the duty must exist. Barbér v. Bd. of Trustees of T/}ﬂ of 8
;-EBarrmgton Police Pensmn Fund, 256 1. App. 3d 814, 818 (1993). Illinois Coults
E%have established that a disability pension may be based upon the line- of duty
agg1 avation of a preex1st1ng physical condition. Wade v. City of N. Chicago Po]zce
;Pensmn Bd., 226 111, 2d 485, 505 (2007); See also: Alm v. Lincolnshire Police. Pens;ou
BOdld '8:5'2-_Ill.zﬁxp_p..SdT 595 (2004); Olson v. City of Wheaton Police Pension Ba’ 153

TIL App. 3d 595 (1987).
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In this case, fhere has been a claim that the Applicant may h&ive‘; had
preemstmg undellylng psychologmal issues, and that his current ploblems are
somatm Dr. Noggle- clalmed the: Applicant’s fall in 2017 “was the catalyst by Whlch
th‘e' underlying: psychological issues emerged.” If we believe this themy, the
;_Apphcants injury-would still be covered. If the fill and head injury aggravated a
pree}nstmg condition, to such an extent that it was “the catalyst by Whlch it

}_:_'_e_merged”, it would certainly be covered under the pension code,

5-§0t]:1er Factors Considered in Weighing Evidence

In this case, we¢ have numerous doctors, some with strongly defermg
%pin‘ions However, the Pension Board is not limited to the evidence providéﬁd by
::?..Doctors testimony of lay witnesses may be considered as well, In this case, there
;;:was one independent witness whose téstimony has been. unrebutted. and
..;j-unchalle.n-'ge_d, that witne'_ss was Paul Deeb. Paul Deeb was the property 01:?111}88-
;sergeant in the mvesmgauon division and served as the immediate supe1v1501; over
;Ethe Applicant when the Applicant worked light duty. Paul Deeb was not pald by
;_elthez party to gwe hlS testimony. It is noted that he is an employee of the
;;Intewonm (City of Pem a) and a member of their management staff. He testlﬁed
é‘concerni'ng' ‘his ObSe-r.SJa'tiO'ns of the Applicant during the time he su.pe-rv-l'sedé him,
;in'dicating there wa-s:i‘a clear problem with the Applicants ability to perform S:;'i_mple“
_;jclerlcal tasks, such aq entermg data into a conmiputer or sending an email; (T1 63).

-é’Paul Deeb also testlﬁed concerning his knowledge of the Applicant prior to the



accident /3 Injury. Deeb testified that he had served on the hostage negot1at1ng team
W1Lh the Applicant and the Applicant did not exhibit any of his post injury problems

5':_at' that time. (Tr. .66).1

Consideration fmust be given to the work performed by the Applicant prior’ to
'%the ingury. A hostage negotiator requires a high level of cognition, the abﬂ1ty to.
icommumcate clearly and concisely and the ability to multitask at an extremely high
%-ilevel They must maintain constant communication with their tactical entry teams,
as well as their marksmen/observer teams and perimeter security umts
;;EfComm.uni'ca.tion- must be maintained with command staff, .me;:li’c‘s_,_ and. Eﬁ:ra-dio-
:é-;dispat_c‘h as well, not to mention the hostage taker andfor victim, _-_depending_,-(én the
Et:ircumstance_s. The very nature of the job requires a person with a high dégifree of
;icogr_’n_‘i-’tion, an ability to multitask at an extremely high level, and to do so under
great stress for many long hours at a time. ‘What this tends to show is t'h:'«;t the
:fi_éApplicant operated at this very high level prior to the injury, but after the 1n]ury he
could not function at';f_a basic level for a short period of time.

Another factof concerning the testimony of Paul Deeb is his tralnlng and
experience, Deeb 1s. a veteran police officer with over 20 years on the job, he has
experience as an 1nvést1gat01 and is a supervisor for the Peoria. Pohce Depeu tment
Police. officers, p‘ai.'ticularly detectives and investigators, are (v ame(i and
experienced in detectmg when people are being untruthful. As a supelwsof if he

felt the Applicant was lying or faking an injury, the matter would have been a
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-iﬁliécipliﬂary matter.. In this case, Deeb testified the Applit:a-nt“w_as a credible 'p_é_r_son
(Tl 66). .

With Lespect to any. theory the Applicant 1s faking or mallngéllng,
conmdel ation must be given to the history of the Applicant. In 2001, the Apphcant
f-suﬁ’:‘eled a severe injury on duty when’ he was run over by a drunk driver.: ThlS
'_:m]uly shattered both. of his hip sockets. During his recovery, he was called 1nt:o the
iChlef’ s office along with a Union representatwe and. told to file for a dlsablhty
_f-i::en’sion-,_ {Te. 84). He refused because he wanted to return to work. His recéver_y-
took two years, but he recovered. He returned fo full duty in 2003 and _contfinued
;f;vorklng for another 14 years, up until the current injury. This begs the quesﬁon
Why would a person refuse a guaranteed line of duty disability pension, only: 1:0 come
;;back to work for 14 additional years, and then try to fake an injury? This may be
:ic1rcumstant1dl evidence, but it is strong circumstantial evidence. It selves 10
é;demonst_rate_ the character of the Applicant and militates against any -cla-%m‘ of
:’iliﬂal'i'ngeri'n.g__ .I

After con31de11ng the evidence; the Pension Board finds the Apphcaﬁt is
fchsabled for full and unrestricted police duty, and that his disability 1e11de1s
'inecessa‘r_y his -susp:e:_r_;_lsmn or retirement from the Police Service. This samsﬁes
_%elements four and ﬁve as noted above.

The Pension Bg_oard' finds the Applicant has met the required burden; he has
satlsﬁed all the _sta’%:utory requirements. necessary for a line of duty disi&é‘_bil_ity

‘pension..
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D.
CONCLUSIONS

L. The Board of Trustees of the Peoria Police Pension Fund has
'.j:urisdicﬁon over-this "si_u:bj_QCt matter.

2. The Appf;lic_&ni; is entitled to 4 line-of-duty disability pension ui;nder
§5/3-114.1 of the Illinois Pension Code, based on 65 % of salary aitached to his rank

at the date of retirement, less any offsets.that may-apply:

3. Pursuant to 40 ILCS §5/3-114.5 of the Illinois Pension Code Apphcant
%;:annot receive benefits under the Pension Code and the Worker's Compensatmn Act:
f01 the same injury. Applicant shall notify the Pension Board in the evé_gnt-rof
.-;sett'lement.or receipt of an award from any Worker’s Compensation case, in. ij‘_r.der-
;'for the Pension Board to determiné whether there should be an offset pursuént to.
f_f§5/3 114.5 of the Ilinois Pension Code, and the Pension Board will retam

:igurlsd1ct1on over thlS._-ma.ttBI- for this purpose only.
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IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED:

That a celtl_flcate of payment be issued to Applicant, Officer Timothy nght

: pursuant to §56/3-133" of the Illinois Pension Code, stafing Applicant's ent1t1ement to.
~a linerof-duty dlsabxhty benefit, effective the date following his removal from-

pa_yro]l.

BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE
PEORIA POLICE PENSION FUND
r,_—d-—"’“'—--\

%aqusenex Vlce P{emdent

Scott. Bowers, Secretary

Norman Burdick, Trustee

DATED: (3 - 'rlf*-"(','/

© THIS IS A FINAL AND APPEALABLE DECISION. THIS DECISION CAN BE
. REVIEWED IN THE CIRCUIT COURT BY FILING A COMPLAINT FOR
. ADMINISTRATIVE REVIEW WITHIN 35 DAYS FROM THE DATE THAT A
. COPY OF THIS DECISION WAS SERVED UPON THE PARTY AFFECTED
. THEREBY. THE AFFECTED PARTY MUST FILE A COMPLAINT FOR
- ADMINISTRATIVE REVIEW WITHIN 85 DAYS FROM THE MAILING DATE OF
° THIS DECISION,
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BEFORE THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF
THE PEORIA POLICE PENSION FUND

 IN'THE MATTER OF THE
. DISABILIT:Y"APPLI@ATIQN OF:

. OFFICER TIMOTHY WIGHT,
APPLICANT,

| CITY OF PEORIA,
g INTERVENOR.

CERTIFICATE OF PAYMENT

Pursuant to Section 5‘?'3-1'3'3 and Section 5/3.114.1 of the Illinois Penéi‘on
Code, 40 ILCS 5/3-101 et seq., this is to certify that the Applicant,. Officer Tnnothy
Wight, is entitled to payment of a Line of Duty Disability Pension Benefit e_q-uz;l to
65% of the salary attached to the rank held by him at the time of his remc')va.l"f?om
the Peoria Police Department payroll, less any and all applicable offsets: ﬁ‘he
effective -date of the Applicant’s line of duty disability pension benefit, subject to
applicable offsets, is. effective DATE £2 MOIVED  Froa ”M“z’fhe amourit of Lhe
bernefit has been certified by the Treasurer of the: City in accerdance with 40 IL-:_CS
531411

BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE
PEORIA POLICE PENSION FUND

_ Bml nt
,g;’ﬁ 74 5& i ¢

SC%, Board Secretatry

Patrick Nichting, Treasurer' ity Af Peoria
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

L, 6ﬁ2 A S’i‘i?AM‘P , being first duly sworn on oath states that (s)he

served copies of the attachod Decision and Order, and Certificate: of Payment. on the
__peisOn(s) named below by depositing same this _ 24 day of SEF 2021
in the U.S. Mail Box at 5" SEPINNING Wreee RD  HINSDALE Tlingis:

(X) PRIORITY MAIL SIGNATURE CONFIRMATION (X) FIRST CLASS MAIL

To:

‘Timethy L. Wight
2715 S. Faircrest
Peoria, IL 61607
(By Priority Mail
- Signature Confirmation)

‘MR, STEPHEN P. KELLY, MR, KENNETH M. SNODGRASS and

‘Attorney at Law MR. KEVIN SHEEHAN
‘2710 North Knoxville Avenue 201 Main Street, Suite 1400
Peoria, Illinois 61604 Peoria, Illinois 61602

(309) 681-1900 (309) 637-1400

‘on behalf of the Applicant; on behalf of the Intérvenor.

CBy First Class Mail) (By First Class Mail)

’fbh\?/Bom mwl

Name / Title.
On behalf of the.
Peoria Police Pension Board

-SUBSCRIBED and SWORN
to before me this Q,_' cfay : ' O!IfFIE:lAI: -y AN
"-?f- RV MR 2921 $ ALUISON C SONNENBERG

(e (ol

NOTARY PUBLIC

NOTARY PUBLIC - STATE OF ILLINOIS
M\ COMMISSION EXPIRES:Q5/30/23

3



